
Adult Commissioning Committee 
The Clinical Commissioning Group and the council are now holding virtual meetings. 
This plays a part in helping us to maintain the safety of the public, staff and councillors.

Should you wish to raise a question or comment on any of the items listed, which will 
be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so, by sending an email to the 
address at the bottom of this agenda.

Please do this by 4.30pm on the day before the meeting is due to take place.

Further information on the coronavirus and what it means for Salford can be found on 
the council website - https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus

DATE: Wednesday, 14 October 2020

TIME: 2.00 pm

VENUE: Microsoft Teams Meeting

AGENDA

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 9th September 2020 (Pages 1 - 6)

ITEMS FOR ASSURANCE 

4  Finance Report (Pages 7 - 20)

5  Cancer Update (Pages 21 - 30)

6  Scheduled Care Update (Pages 31 - 38)

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 

7  Adult Commissioning Report (Pages 39 - 46)

8  Any Other Business 

9  Dates of Future Meetings 

Wednesday 11 November 2020 at 14:00
Wednesday 13 January 2021 at 14:00
Wednesday 10 February 2021 at 14:00
Wednesday 10 March 2021 at 14:00

Public Document Pack

https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus


Contact Officer: Carol Eddleston
Tel No: 0161 793 3316
E-Mail: decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk

mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk


MINUTES OF ADULTS’ COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE

Wednesday 9 September 2020, 14:00 – 15:27 via MS Teams

Present
Cllr Jim Cammell (JC) Executive Support Member for Social Care & Mental Health - SCC
Mr David Flinn (DF) Neighbourhood Lead – CCG
Cllr Bill Hinds (BH) Lead Member for Finance & Support Services
Cllr Tracy Kelly (TK) Statutory Deputy City Mayor and Lead Member for Housing & 

Neighbourhoods - CCG
Mrs Karen Proctor (KP) Director of Commissioning – CCG
Mrs Charlotte Ramsden CR) Strategic Director Place - SCC
Dr Tom Regan (TR) Clinical Director for Commissioning - CCG
Cllr Gina Reynolds (GR) Lead Member for Adult Services, Health & Wellbeing – SCC – chair
Mrs Francine Thorpe (FT) Director of Quality and Innovation
Mr David Warhurst (DH) Chief Finance Officer – CCG

In Attendance
Mr Chris Hesketh (CH) Head of Financial Management
Ms Clare Mayo (CM) Integrated Commissioning Manager (Adult MH) - CCG/SCC
Mrs Gillian Mclauchlan (GM) Deputy Director of Public Health – SCC
Ms Tori Quinn (TQ) Acting Head of Service Improvement - CCG
Ms Claire Vaughan (CV) Head of Medicines Optimisation - CCG
Ms Carol Eddleston (CAE) Senior Democratic Services Advisor – SCC

Apologies
Mr Steve Dixon (SD) Chief Accountable Officer - CCG
Mr Harry Golby (HG) Assistant Director of Commissioning – CCG 
Mrs Joanne Hardman (JH) Chief Finance Officer – SCC
Dr David McKelvey (DMcK) Neighbourhood Lead – CCG
Dr Jeremy Tankel (JT) Medical Director – CCG – co-chair

1. Apologies for Absence 
The above apologies were noted.

2. Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest in any of the items on the agenda.

3. Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 8th July 2020
The minutes of the meeting held on 8th July 2020 were approved as a correct record.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



4. Items for Assurance

4a) Finance Report
DW presented an in-year update in relation to the financial performance of the adults’ element of 
the Integrated Fund at month 4 2020/21 which currently showed an overspend of £0.1m. Due to the 
current uncertainly in relation to the NHS financial regime the position was not currently forecast 
forward to the end of the financial year. At the time the report was prepared the CCG had still not 
formally received its allocation for month 5 and the current financial regime meant that no new 
investment could be made into services at this time.

In the current funding regime for 2020/21 the NHS completed a monthly top up process which 
involved either funding deficits or taking back surpluses. Consequently £0.9 of Salford City Council 
income had been deferred so that the CCG would not effectively have had to give part of the SCC 
allocation relating to future expenditure back to the national team. This would probably be required 
also for months 5 and 6.

The unfortunate number of deaths in care homes had led to an estimated shortfall in income in the 
region of £0.5m. 

The Salford Care Organisation was currently finalising and communicating with providers about 
arrangements for the move towards the Real Living Wage as agreed.

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee noted the in-year position of the adults’ services within the 
Integrated Fund for 2020/21 and noted the risks and next steps.

4b) Adult Mental Health Update
JS presented the two-part report. The first part provided an update on the current adult mental 
health performance against a range of targets for mental health set out in the 5 Year Forward View 
for Mental Health (5YFV) and the NHS Long Term Plan, and an update on the additional mental 
health work streams aligning with ongoing work across Greater Manchester. The second part of the 
report provided an update on the Living Well UK Programme, which was a three year programme 
aimed at helping Salford focus on people’s skills, aspirations and experiences to build a different way 
of offering mental health support and help.

Following a review of priority areas in light of Covid-19 three key areas had been identified: 
Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT), Mental Health Crisis and Urgent Care, and Living 
Well.

At the peak of Covid-19 there had been reduction in referral rates to Improving Access to 
Psychological Therapies (IAPT) of approximately 50% across Greater Manchester and 30% in Salford, 
but referrals were now back to pre-Covid rates. Commissioners had taken the opportunity to 
develop a digital offer which had worked well, but was inevitably not ideal for everyone and some 
patients had chosen to await the return to face to face appointments. Work was now underway to 
establish timescales for reintroducing face to face therapy, with priority given to individuals who had 
said that they would prefer to wait for face to face rather than participate in telephone or video 
appointments.

Commissioners and providers were starting to look at suitable cohesive pathways for people with 
long term conditions. One of the ongoing challenges for IAPT was workforce. The qualifications 

Page 2



required of IAPT therapists were very stringent and specific and work was underway to develop a 
competency framework.

In relation to adult mental health crisis and urgent care services GMMH had established a 24/7 
helpline and the GM Clinical Assessment Service (CAS) was in place to divert callers to this 24/7 
helpline and onto appropriate local services as required. It was estimated that approximately 25% of 
A&E attendance could be diverted and urgent care redesign was taking on the learning from having 
mental health and A&E presentation diverted to an alternative location. 

At the peak of the pandemic the decision was made to pause the Living Well work and staff were 
redeployed to support frontline requirements. The work was restarted in June and the Living Well 
team was now operating a pilot approach in Broughton, supporting referrals that would otherwise 
not have met the criteria for Community Mental Health Teams (CMHT). As part of the NHS Long 
Term Plan localities were being asked to realign community mental health services with primary care 
networks (PCNs) and this remodelling was being undertaken in Salford within the Living Well work. 

World Suicide Prevention Awareness Day on 10 September marked the start of the Month of Hope 
which ended on 10 October with World Mental Health Day and there would be a number of mental 
health and suicide prevention awareness raising initiatives throughout the month. Conversations 
were ongoing with Highways England, Landscaping and Environment about suicide prevention and 
engagement with people who presented at bridges. Work was being undertaken at a Greater 
Manchester level to support training of barbers in suicide prevention awareness. Four barbers from 
Salford had undergone training and every individual trained was encouraged to pass on their 
learning to colleagues. Craig’s Barber Shop in Bolton @CraigBarbersBL2 was really helping to spread 
the message about suicide prevention awareness.

There were a number of national workshops taking place nationally about the different types of 
presentations to mental health services that were being seen as a result of Covid-19 and it was 
anticipated that the local increase in demand might be in the region of 30%.

Information was being gathered from users of services which had changed or been delivered 
differently due to the pandemic and this would help commissioners to better understand their lived 
experiences. 

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee noted the report.

4c) Integrated Care / Community Health Care Update
KP/TQ/TR presented an update on the integrated care programme and the work programmes of the 
Integrated Community Based Care Group (ICBCCG), Adults’ Advisory Board (AAB) and End of Life 
Services for the months March to August 2020. The update included a brief summary and overview 
of the current status of services taking into account the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic.

The ICBCCG had not met since 17 March mainly due to the fact that staff supporting the group had 
either been redeployed or the focus of their work had changed so there were no matters to report 
on at this time.

Performance and patient care had been impacted by national guidance that was issued in mid-
March and updated in early April which set out how providers of community support could release 
capacity to support the Covid-19 preparedness and response. This essentially included guidance on 

Page 3



which services to stop, which to partially stop, and which to continue, so as to allow staff capacity to 
be released to support other services.

All community services were now working through a process of reinstating services and planning for 
an enhancement of community services to manage the rehabilitation needs of those who had had 
Covid-19 and those who had been shielding. Risk assessments were being carried out for all services 
and consideration given to the need to stagger appointments and leave sufficient time between 
appointments. Some appointments would be conducted by telephone.

Although the GM Transformation Fund Programme had now ended, the indicators were still 
routinely monitored. An End of Programme Evaluation of the 12 transformation ‘test of change’ 
projects implemented between 2017 and 2020 had been carried out by Advancing Quality Alliance 
(AQuA) and presented to the Adults’ Advisory Board in July. The evaluation identified a number of 
definitive benefits including better use of resources, improved patient experience and improved 
patient outcomes.

CR and KP acknowledged the need for a deeper understanding of the reasons behind a number of 
red RAG ratings in relation to care homes.

Salford Care Organisation’s draft, strategic system wide community services prioritisation plans 
outlined in section 5 of the report fitted into the Integrated Community workstream of the Adults’ 
Strategic System Priorities 2020/21 that the Adults’ Commissioning Committee had considered at its 
July meeting. TQ confirmed that all parties were fully committed to working as one team on these 
priorities. 

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee noted the report.

5. Items for Information

5a) Adult Commissioning Report
FT and KP presented the Adult Commissioning Report which included an overview of the Urgent & 
Emergency Care Redesign and an update on the Lung Health check pilot. Full updates on each of 
these areas would be presented to the committee later in the year.

FT explained that the ambition to transform urgent and emergency care had been longstanding but 
the pandemic had made the need for this transformation even more important as crowded 
emergency departments could no longer be tolerated because of the risks of virus transmission and 
the resulting enhanced infection prevention and control measures required.

‘Urgent and Emergency Care (UEC) by Appointment’ had been developed to support the 
management of flow into A&E departments, direct patients to other services more appropriate for 
their condition and reduce the number of A&E attendances. Two Salford-wide test of change days 
had been carried out in August to support the aspiration of directing patients to more appropriate 
services and feedback from patients and clinicians had been positive.

FT concluded by saying that all partners were firmly committed to working together to achieve the 
best possible outcomes for patients.

KP provided an update on the Salford Lung Health Check pilot that systematically checked for early 
onset of respiratory diseases among individuals aged 55-74 and who were current or previous 
smokers or for whom smoking status was not known by their GP. Every current smoker who 

Page 4



accessed the service was also offered support to stop smoking. The pilot was suspended in March 
due to COVID but had resumed on 10th August.

By March, 2,417 patients had accepted their invitation to attend for a Lung Health Check and, from 
these, 16 lung cancers had been detected and five other cancers. These were cancers which might 
otherwise have gone undetected for some time.

The pilot was commissioned locally but at the end of March Salford received notification that the 
National Cancer Board had approved the expansion of the national Targeted Lung Health Checks 
Programme to include a number of existing projects, including the Salford pilot.

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee noted the updates.

6. Any Other Business
6a) Health and Care Commissioning Board Report – Investing in Prevention and Covid 
Response
TK expressed concern at the late circulation of this item and said that not all members may have had 
an opportunity to read the report. GR understood these concerns and said that, had timescales 
permitted, the report would have been presented to the ACC first. CR apologised for the fact that 
the report had been circulated only earlier in the day. It had been presented and approved at the 
previous week’s Health and Care Commissioning Board meeting on 2nd September and she had been 
made aware only on 8th September that the board had asked for the report to be presented to the 
Adults’ Commissioning Committee too. The decision had been taken by the board so it had been 
brought to the ACC for information as not all members of the board were also members of the ACC.

The report outlined necessary expenditure on Public Health services in Salford budgeting for the 
uplift in public health grant and the Test and Trace grant. It highlighted the key issues for the system 
regarding specialist requirements for statutory responsibilities of the council for health protection 
and public health, and for the city to remain COVID secure.

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee noted the contents of the report but expressed 
disappointment at its late circulation.

7. Dates of Future Meetings

Wednesday 14 October 2020 at 14:00 
Wednesday 11 November 2020 at 14:00 
Wednesday 13 January 2021 at 14:00 
Wednesday 10 February 2021 at 14:00 
Wednesday 10 March 2021 at 14:00

The meeting closed at 15:27.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                          

ADULTS’ COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE (ACC) 

AGENDA ITEM NO: 4

Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information (Please underline and bold)  

14th October 2020 (Date of Meeting)

Report of: Interim Chief Finance Officer

Date of Paper: 6th October 2020

Subject: Finance Report

In case of query 
Please contact:

David Warhurst, Interim Chief Finance 
Officer

Strategic Priorities: Please tick which strategic priorities the paper relates to:

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research
 Integrated Community Care Services (Adult Services)

Children’s and Maternity Services
Primary Care

 Enabling Transformation
Purpose of Paper:                                   

The purpose of this paper is to provide the Adults’ Commissioning Committee with:

 The 2020/21 financial outturn of the Integrated Fund for Adult services (Section 3) 
along with highlighting the risks to the financial position of the Adults Integrated 
Fund

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

                                                          

Further explanatory information required

HOW WILL THIS BENEFIT THE 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING OF 
SALFORD RESIDENTS OR THE 
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP?

Ensuring public funding is spent appropriately.  
Achieving Value for Money, ensuring that 
funding is available to protect core services.

WHAT RISKS MAY ARISE AS A 
RESULT OF THIS PAPER?  HOW 
CAN THEY BE MITIGATED?
 

Financial and performance pressures 
associated with the adults’ integrated fund 
services. Through management of committed 
developments and holding providers to account 
for performance.

WHAT EQUALITY-RELATED RISKS 
MAY ARISE AS A RESULT OF THIS 
PAPER?  HOW WILL THESE BE 
MITIGATED?

N/A

DOES THIS PAPER HELP ADDRESS 
ANY EXISTING HIGH RISKS FACING 
THE ORGANISATION?  IF SO WHAT 
ARE THEY AND HOW DOES THIS 
PAPER REDUCE THEM?

N/A

PLEASE DESCRIBE ANY POSSIBLE 
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PAPER.

N/A

PLEASE IDENTIFY ANY CURRENT 
SERVICES OR ROLES THAT MAY BE 
AFFECTED BY ISSUES WITHIN THIS 
PAPER:

N/A

Footnote:

Members of Adults Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly.  Once papers are distributed no 
amendments are possible.

Page 8



                                      
Document Development

Process Yes No Not
Applicable

Comments and Date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, actual report) Outcome

Public Engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation)

X

Clinical Engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation)

X

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Social Value and 
the impacts on the Salford socially, economically 
and environmentally?
Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality Analysis 
(EA) of any adverse impacts?
(Please detail outcomes, including risks and how 
these will be managed) 

X

Legal Advice Sought
X

Presented to any informal groups or committees 
(including partnership groups) for engagement or 
other formal governance groups for comments / 
approval? 
(Please specify in comments)

X

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work and ensure there is clarity 
in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether amendments were requested about a particular part of the 
work.

P
age 9



                                      
Adults Commissioning Committee (ACC)

Finance Report – 14th October 2020

1. Executive Summary

This finance report provides the Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) with an in-year 
update in relation to the financial performance of the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund 
(IF) at month 5 2020/21.

Due to the current uncertainty in relation to the NHS financial regime, the position is 
currently not forecast forward to the end of the financial year. The NHS has now received 
information in relation to the financial regime for Month’s 7-12, however it is currently not 
possible to accurately ascertain what this means at an organisational level.  

At month 5, the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund is currently showing an overspend of 
£0.1m. 

Section 2 highlights the main areas of over and under performance within the Fund.  Most 
of the expenditure lines within are offsetting benefits to the pressure within committed 
developments. This is resultant from the NHS financial regime rather than service 
provision.  Key notes relating to the financial position are described below:

 Committed developments (£3.9m) - This is primarily made up of three transactions 
which offset the slippages on most other expenditure lines:

1. Block Contracts (£2.1m) – The nationally calculated block contracts resulted in 
underspends on Adults, offset by overspends on Children’s services. £2.1m of 
funding has therefore been transferred between the two funds to offset this 
change.

2. Contingencies (£0.7m) – Due to the M1-6 finance regime the CCG have had to 
include contingencies within the committed developments that relate to Adult 
services. These contingencies relate to pre-existing commitments that don’t 
form part of the block payments to providers that will be funded by the IF.

3. Savings target (£1.0m) – The £2.0m saving required for the full financial year 
within the Fund. The YTD delivery is offset by slippages primarily within acute 
lines.

 Customer & Client Receipts (£0.8m) – A shortfall in income has been estimated as a 
result of the unfortunate number of deaths in care homes.

Section 3 & 4 highlights the key risks and updates that are related to the adults’ integrated 
fund. Along with the next steps in delivering a balanced adult integrated fund position for 
2020/21.

ACC is asked to note the in-year position for the adult’s Integrated Fund for 2020/21 and 
the risks identified affecting the adults’ integrated fund presently and in the future.

Page 10



                                      

2.1 This latest finance report provides the Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) with 
the in-year position of the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund for the financial year 
(2020/21).  The appendices contain further detail, but it should be noted, within the 
there are some significant variances that relate almost entirely to the national 
calculation of block contracts.

2.2 This finance report is based on information up to the end of August 2020.  A detailed 
analysis of the position for each of the adults’ services within the Integrated Fund is 
shown in Appendices One to Six. The Service and Finance Group (SFG) have 
scrutinised the position and agreed to the key messages.  

2.3 The forecast position to September 2020 shows expenditure as an under spend of 
£0.7m, however this is offset by the expected reduction in customer and client 
receipts by £0.8m in 2020/21, therefore the overall forecast position to September 
2020 is a slight over spend of £0.1m, as shown in Table 1 below.  

Table 1: 2020/21 Financial Summary

2. 2020/21 In-Year Monitoring

Page 11



                                      
2.4.1 Acute/other underspends – The CCG is mandated under the M1-6 financial regime 

to maintain set budget values nationally. Consequently the nationally calculated block 
results in various large over and underspends across expenditure lines. However, 
these are offset by the pressure within committed developments.  

2.4.2 Committed Developments funding transfer - £2.1m of funding has been 
transferred between Adults’ and Children’s services. NHSE mandated that 
commissioners pay providers on a block contract basis, initially until the end of July, 
since extended to the end of September. These block prices were calculated 
predicated on expenditure to Month 9 in 2019/20, including uplift for growth. 
Therefore, these calculations are significantly different from those expected through 
locally commissioned contract values. As an example, one off 2019/20 critical care 
costs are in the nationally calculated contract, whereas these wouldn’t have been in 
local plans.

This resulted in an overspend within Children’s offset by an under spend within 
Adults, conveyed primarily in the Acute lines in table 1.  As these changes where not 
linked to service provision, it was necessary to transfer an appropriate level of 
funding.

It should be noted this transfer covers M1-6 and now that we have seen the financial 
regime for M7-12 this will be required for the rest of 2020/21 as the block contracts 
will remain however values have been amended. Further work will be required to 
assess the full impact between adults and children’s.

2.4.3 Committed Developments Contingencies - £0.7m - Due to the M1-6 finance 
regime the CCG have had to include contingencies within the committed 
developments that relate to Adult services. These contingencies relate to pre-existing 
commitments that don’t form part of the block payments to providers that will be 
funded by the IF.

2.4.4 Customer & Client Receipts - £0.8m – A review has been undertaken and the 
shortfall in income as a result of the unfortunate number of deaths in care homes 
from April to September isn’t expected to exceed £0.8m. As national guidance has 
been amended on this area the loss seen so far isn’t expected to continue for the 
remainder of 2020/21. 

3. Key Risks/Updates

3.1 The M1-6 NHS Finance regime will be amended from October 2020 as we move 
away from National funding for COVID to local level funding. Although the M7-12 
financial regime has been published alongside allocations, additional monies have 
been allocated to on a Greater Manchester (GM) footprint. The integrated care 
system (ICS) is trying to work through the guidance and funding envelope, therefore 
accurately ascertaining an organisational view is difficult.

3.2 As expected, there is greater focus on ICS delivery, consequently a proportion of the 
GM funding envelope, c13.8% (c£391m) is allocated at a system level, with the 
expectation that the ICS decides how best to allocate this:

Page 12



                                      
- COVID Funding (c£150m) - Nationally distributed to the ICS on a fair share 

basis.

- Growth funding (c£54m) - Additional growth funding based on 2020/21 
anticipated CCG allocation growth rates

- Top-Up Funding (c£188m) - top-up funding to bring the system to a breakeven 
position, using an updated version of the methodology applied in the month 1-6 
financial framework.

There are a number of national funding streams that will sit outside of the ICS 
financial envelope; these include funding for Hospital Discharge Protocol, Elective 
Incentive monies and potentially nationally commissioned Independent sector 
contracts, although this is still to be confirmed.

GM hasn’t yet ratified how these monies will be distributed to commissioners and 
providers across the system; therefore for Salford we need to understand this to then 
be able to produce a forecast for 2020/21 financial year.

One notable change is that the NHS can invest funding in line with the aims of the 
Mental Health Investment Standard (MHIS).

3.3 Under the M1-6 regime all COVID 19 costs are currently funded nationally and have 
been managed outside of the integrated fund. From October, if there is a shortfall in 
funding for COVID 19 costs, this may become a cost pressure for the Fund.

3.4 There is no funding currently in place for either seasonality or if there is a potential 
second wave of COVID 19. 

3.5 Under the M1-6 regime new or enhanced care packages relating to ASC have been 
nationally funded by the NHS. From September, only the first 6 weeks of placements 
will be funded. There are a number of outstanding assessments that need to be 
completed for all new packages as these haven’t been taking place during COVID 
19. Prioritisation of assessments will need to be undertaken in order to meet the 
requirements of the schemes.

3.6 The current regime means that the Savings target for the first 6 months (in year) 
should be achieved. However beyond September, there is a risk that this may end up 
as a financial pressure.

4. Next Steps

4.1 The Salford care organisation is currently finalising and communicating with 
providers in recognition of the move towards the Real Living Wage that was agreed 
pre COVID 19. 

4.2 For the November committee, if GM has ratified how funding will be distributed 
across the system and further clarity of the financial regime is given, this should then 
allow for a full year forecast of 2020/21 to be calculated.

Page 13



                                      
5. Recommendations

5.1 The Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) is asked to:

 Note the in-year position of the adults’ services within the Integrated Fund for 
2020/21

 Note the risks and next steps.

David Warhurst
Interim Chief Financial Officer, Salford CCG
6th October 2020

Page 14



                                      
Appendix 1 – ICO Adult Social Care 2020/21

Notes on this Appendix:

This appendix shows all of the Adult Social Care services that are managed by the ICO 
(Salford Royal) and totals £98.0m for 2020/21.  The budget for 2020/21 was set at the 
recurrent budget value for 2019/20 plus an increase of £2.0m for cost pressures in relation to 
Residential and Learning Difficulties Placements. The above table only reflects the project 
cost and budget to the end of September 2020

These services remain on a block arrangement till the end of September 2020 due to the 
national funding schemes in place to support the ASC market with respect of new packages 
of care since March 2020 as a result of COVID-19. Beyond this date the ASC services will 
only be able to receive funding for the first 6 weeks of any new placements.

Page 15



Page 10 of 14

Appendix 2 – ICO Hospital Based Services (SRFT Acute) 2020/21

Notes on this Appendix:

Due to the current financial regime all non-essential reporting has been suspended until further notice by NHSE this will have a significant 
impact on how we assess performance of contracts for reporting purposes.

This appendix shows the hospital based services that are within scope of the ICO and the Pooled budget, all relating to Salford Royal.  This 
table normally shows activity and spend by care setting (A&E department, unplanned admissions, planned admissions and outpatients). The 
above table only reflects the project cost and budget to the end of September 2020

Under the M1-6 financial regime the monitoring of finance and activity for all hospital services were suspended in order to cope with the 
COVID-19 pandemic from the middle of March 2020. At this time all NHS contracts were placed on block arrangements until further notice and 
it has now been confirmed this will continue through 2020/21 as expected while services are reactivated following the pandemic. Due to the 
contract now being on block the activity element of the table above has been removed but will be restored once the activity contract is 
reinstated.

P
age 16



Page 11 of 14

Appendix 3 – ICO Community Services (SRFT Community) 2020/21

Notes on this Appendix:

Due to the current financial regime all non-essential reporting has been suspended until further 
notice by NHSE this will have a significant impact on how we assess performance of contracts for 
reporting purposes.

This appendix shows all of the adult community health services spend within the ICO contract, 
broken down by service. The above table only reflects the project cost and budget to the end of 
September 2020

The ICO community contract currently sits with SRFT and as a result this contract also falls under 
the same block arrangements as the acute contracts. As mentioned in appendix 2 above this 
contract will remain on block for the rest of 2020/21. 

Page 17



Page 12 of 14

Appendix 4 – Non-ICO Services 2020/21

Notes on this Appendix:

Due to the current financial regime all non-essential reporting has been suspended until further 
notice by NHSE this will have a significant impact on how we assess performance of contracts for 
reporting purposes.

This appendix shows all of those commissioned services that are not part of the SRFT ICO contract 
that fall within the scope of the integrated fund services. The above table only reflects the project 
cost and budget to the end of September 2020.

Page 18



Page 13 of 14

Appendix 5 – Aligned Services 2020/21

Notes on this Appendix:

Due to the current financial regime all non-essential reporting has been suspended until further 
notice by NHSE this will have a significant impact on how we assess performance of contracts for 
reporting purposes.

This appendix shows all the commissioned services that are within the aligned element of the 
Adult’s Integrated Fund.  These services cannot be legally included in a Section 75 Agreement 
(pooled budget) but these are included in Salford’s Integrated Commissioning Partnership 
Agreement.  Predominantly these relate to surgical hospital activity and emergency ambulance 
services. Any over or underspend in these areas are included within the financial risk share of the 
Integrated Fund.

During the current financial regime any large private provider was placed on a national contract paid 
for by NHSE to give capacity during COVID this included Oakland’s Hospital which is Salford CCG’s 
largest private provider and as a result creates a large underspend within the acute services private 
line. This has been used to offset the savings target within the Adults integrated fund for M1-6 only. 
The above table only reflects the project cost and budget to the end of September 2020.

The expectation is that the National contracts will be passed to the lead CCG’s to start to pay the 
private providers. Further guidance and a framework will be published, it is expected this will happen 
from beyond October 2020 at the earliest.

Page 19



Page 14 of 14

Appendix 6 – Committed Developments 2020/21

Notes on this Appendix:

This appendix shows funding (budget) that has not been transferred into contracts.  This funding 
has not been transferred across to providers as these budgets are based on estimated financial 
values and will only transfer into contracts when the actual financial values have been agreed. The 
above table only reflects the project cost and budget to the end of September 2020

All contingencies have been deferred into later months due to the current financial regime no new 
investment can be made into services at this time. The deferment includes the mayoral priorities that 
relates to the move towards real living wage.

The Adults’ Integrated Fund had a recurrent savings target of £2.0m for the year to achieve financial 
balance. £1.0m relates to this initial savings target with a further £2.1m being a result of NHS acute 
contract block arrangements funding has been transferred to the children’s element of the IF in 
order to fund acute pressures year to date. This value can be offset with the under spend on acute 
services.

Page 20



 

                                                          

ADULT COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE  
AGENDA ITEM NO: 5

Item for Decision/Assurance/Information 

14 October 2020 

Report of: Annette Donegani
Senior Service Improvement Manager

Karen Proctor
Director of Commissioning 

Date of Paper: 2 October 2020

Subject: Cancer Waiting Time Report

In case of query 
Please contact:

Annette Donegani
annette.donegani@nhs.net

Strategic Priorities: Please tick which strategic priorities the paper relates to:

 Quality of Care
 Population Health and Prevention

Integrated Community Based Care and Long Term Conditions 
Transforming Hospital Care
Mental Health and Learning Disabilities 
Enabling Transformation 

Purpose of Paper:

This report provides a monthly update and assurance on Cancer contract performance in 
relation to services commissioned by Salford CCG and Salford City Council.

A range of data sources, including national and local performance & quality indicators 
together with ‘softer’ intelligence provided by CCG commissioners is used to:

 Summarise performance in relation to cancer services against national targets,

 Detail specific exceptions relating to contract performance compliance, including 
recommendations and/or agreed mitigating actions, as necessary,

 Provide context in relation to the impact of performance compliance on specific 
cancer work streams / projects, including any impact on other programme areas,

Page 21

Agenda Item 5

mailto:annette.donegani@nhs.net


 

                                                          

Further explanatory information required

HOW WILL THIS BENEFIT THE 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING OF 
SALFORD RESIDENTS OR THE 
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP?

By presenting any areas of pressure / 
underperformance, appropriate actions can be 
identified and implemented to support 
improvements.

WHAT RISKS MAY ARISE AS A 
RESULT OF THIS PAPER?  HOW 
CAN THEY BE MITIGATED?
 

N/A

WHAT EQUALITY-RELATED RISKS 
MAY ARISE AS A RESULT OF THIS 
PAPER?  HOW WILL THESE BE 
MITIGATED?

N/A

DOES THIS PAPER HELP ADDRESS 
ANY EXISTING HIGH OR EXTREME 
RISKS FACING THE 
ORGANISATION?  IF SO WHAT ARE 
THEY AND HOW DOES THIS PAPER 
REDUCE THEM?

N/A

PLEASE DESCRIBE ANY POSSIBLE 
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PAPER.

N/A

PLEASE IDENTIFY ANY CURRENT 
SERVICES OR ROLES THAT MAY BE 
AFFECTED BY ISSUES WITHIN THIS 
PAPER:

N/A

Footnote:

Members of NHS Salford Clinical Commissioning Group – Service and Finance Group will read all papers 
thoroughly.  Once papers are distributed no amendments are possible.

Page 22



  

3

Document Development

Process Yes No Not
Applicable

Comments and Date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, actual report) Outcome

Public Engagement
(Please detail the method  ie survey, event, consultation)



Clinical Engagement
(Please detail the method  ie survey, event, consultation)



Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 
Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts?
(Please detail outcomes, including risks and how these 
will be managed) 



Legal Advice Sought 

Presented to the Commissioning Committee 

Presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board 

Presented to the Integrated Adult Health and 
Care Commissioning Joint Committee 

Presented to any other groups or committees, 
including Partnership Groups
(Please specify in comments)



Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work and ensure there is clarity 
in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether amendments were requested about a particular part of the 
work.

P
age 23



4

Cancer Service Report – June

1. Executive Summary

This paper provides an update on work programmes relating to Caner Care.  It outlines the following:

 current performance against relevant NHS Constitutional Standards
 the impact of COVID-19 

Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note the content of this report and comment as appropriate.

2. CCG Cancer Performance Against National and Local Indicators

Whilst cancer services have remained a priority area for the NHS during the pandemic, COVID-19 has 
significantly impacted on cancer waiting time standards nationwide. 

There are 11 cancer waiting time (CWT) indicators with set performance targets which CCGs have a 
responsibility to deliver. The table below shows the CCGs performance against all CWT indicators as at 
July 2020 and highlights the following: 

 Current month activity and breaches
 RAG rated current month performance compared and trended with performance for the same 

month in the previous year
 Year to date performance RAG rated against national CWT targets  

July 2020 
Cancer Waiting Times (CWT)
Indicator Description

CWT 
Target

Total 
Seen

Seen in 
Target Breaches Perform-

ance
July 
19/20 Trend YTD

20/21
Cancer Patients - 2 Week Waits (2WW)
(Urgent GP Referral)
% seen within two weeks of an urgent GP 
referral for suspected cancer

93% 811 742 69 91.5% 82.3% 93.7%

Cancer Patients - 2 Week Waits 
(Breast Symptoms)
% seen within two weeks of an urgent 
referral for breast symptoms where cancer 
was not initially suspected

93%
77 34 43 44.2% 42.2% 58.6%

Cancer Waits - 28 Days 
(Faster Diagnosis Standard)
% receiving a communication of diagnosis 
for cancer or a ruling out of cancer, or a 
decision to treat if made before 
communication of diagnosis within 28 days

70% 863 639 224 74.0% New for 
20/21 N/A 73.9%

Cancer Waits - 31 Days (All Cancers)
% receiving first definitive treatment within 
one month (31-days) of a cancer diagnosis

96% 100 96 4 96.0% 96.0% 95.2%

Cancer Waits - 31 Days (Surgery)
% receiving subsequent treatment for 
cancer within 31-days where that treatment 
is surgery

94% 22 21 1 95.5% 100% 88.0%

Cancer Waits - 31 Days (Drugs)
% receiving subsequent treatment for 
cancer within 31-days, where that treatment 
is an Anti-Cancer Drug Regimen

98% 17 16 1 94.1% 100% 98.6%

Page 24



5

Cancer Waits - 31 Days (Radiotherapy)
% receiving subsequent treatment for 
cancer within 31-days, where that treatment 
is a Radiotherapy Treatment Course

94% 29 29 0 100% 100% 99.1%

Cancer Waits - 62 Days 
(Urgent GP Referral)
% receiving first definitive treatment for 
cancer within two months (62 days) of an 
urgent GP referral for suspected cancer

85% 48 43 5 89.6% 80.3% 76.6%

Cancer Waits - 62 Days 
(Screening Service)
% receiving first definitive treatment for 
cancer within 62-days of referral from an 
NHS Cancer Screening Service

90% 1 0 1 0% 88.9% 87.5%

Cancer Waits - 62 Days 
(Decision to Upgrade)
% receiving first definitive treatment for 
cancer within 62-days of a consultant 
decision to upgrade their priority status

85% 22 19 3 86.4% 86.5% 77.9%

Cancer Waits  >104 days (CCG)
Salford CCG patients waiting 104 days or 
more from referral to the first definitive 
treatment

0 8 N/A N/A 8 New for 
20/21 N/A 38

3. Breach Analysis

July performance shows 6 of the 11 measures met target, a breakdown of the five CWT indicators that did 
not meet target is detailed below.

2 Week Wait (following a suspected cancer GP Referral) – 93% target

 The volume of GP suspected cancer referrals seen in July 2020 were 86% of July 2019 volume.
 To meet the target for July, 13 more patients would have needed to be seen within two weeks. 
 61 of the 69 breaches took place at Manchester Foundation Trust (MFT), the majority being 

suspected breast cancer, with patients being seen with a 15 to 21 day timeframe. There was 1 
suspected children cancer that waited in excess of 20 days to be seen 

2 Week Wait (following a GP referral for Breast Symptoms) – 93% target

 The volume of GP breast symptoms referrals seen in July 2020 were 71% of July 2019 volume.
 To meet the target for July, 38 more patients would have needed to be seen within two weeks. 
 40 of the 43 breaches took place at MFT; just over 50% of patients were waiting between 15 

and 21 days to be seen and the remainder waiting between 22 days and 119 days.

31 Days wait for subsequent cancer treatment (Drugs) – 98% target

 July performance was at 94.1% (17 patients seen of which 16 were within standard). 
 The patient waited 139 days at SRFT. 
 The YTD position is 98.6%, which meets target.

62 Days wait for initial treatment (following Screening) – 90% target

 July performance was at 0% (one patient seen, but not within target). 
 The patient waited 125 days at Bolton FT following bowel screening, due to a delay in accessing 

a diagnostic procedure. 

Page 25



6

Waiting 104 days or more from referral to the first definitive treatment

 In July, Salford CCG had 8 patients treated who had waited over 104 days for their first definitive 
cancer treatment against a zero tolerance. 

4.   Breach Analysis by Provider Trust

Salford CCG patients receive cancer treatment at a range of Providers. The table below shows the five July 
2020 CCG CWT breaches referred to above broken down by hospital provider. 

CCG 
Performance Breaches by Provider Trust

Indicator Target GM 
July 20 

July 20 YTD MFT BFT SRFT Christie PAT

2WW – Urgent GP 
Referrals 93% 76.8% 91.5% 93.7% 61 1 6 1

2WW – Breast Symptoms
93% 92.6% 44.2% 58.6% 40 3

31 Day Waits – 2nd or 
subsequent treatment - 

Drugs
98% 91.9% 94.1% 98.6% 1

62 Day Waits – Following 
Screening 90% 68.4% 0% 87.5% 1

Waiting 104 days or more 
from referral to first 
definitive treatment

0 92*
June data 8 38 2 1 2 3

With the exception of Manchester Foundation Trust (MFT), Salford CCG breach numbers at individual 
Provider Trusts are small. 

MFT report that all cancer referrals are triaged and the most clinically urgent prioritised for assessment and 
treatment, meaning that those assessed as less urgent are waiting longer. In addition, despite patients 
being assured that the hospital site is COVID secure with strict adherence to Public Health England (PHE) 
hygiene requirements and social distancing measures, a proportion of patients are continuing to defer 
outpatient appointments due to fears about COVID-19, which has resulted in patients rebooking to a later 
date and triggering breaches. Manchester CCG has been asked for further information about capacity 
issues at MFT and cancer waiting times recovery plans.

5. Key Highlights

Performance against CWT targets has started to improve and cancer services remain a priority area for the 
NHS.  The NHS is now in Phase 3 recovery, with national guidance issued on the 31 July 2020 identifying 
the following areas to focus on, in respect of cancer services:

 To return to pre-pandemic levels of suspected cancer referrals
 To increase the treatment numbers for cancer patients
 To reduce the backlog of those waiting for treatment

Salford and GM are seeing improvements in all these areas. The following key points provide some 
background to the main challenges and issues.

Page 26



7

GP Suspected Cancer Referrals
Cancer services have remained open during the COVID-19 pandemic with national and local 
communications encouraging patients to not delay contacting their GP with any worrying signs or 
symptoms and to attend hospital settings for appointments and cancer diagnostic tests.

However, as the table below shows during the period April to June 2020 GP suspected cancer referrals 
were significantly lower than normal (March 2020). This has improved, with Salford GP referrals showing 
greater recovery than GM.

Cancer referrals are returning to normal levels for all tumour groups with the exception of lung cancer.  At 
the end of August, suspected lung cancer referrals for GM were 50% less than normal and 25% lower for 
Salford CCG. Local and national work on addressing this with patient and professional facing 
communications is ongoing.

“Missing” Cancer Referrals
It is calculated that during March – July 2020, there were 18,000 fewer suspected cancer referrals than 
expected made in GM. GM Cancer Alliance is working with GM CCGs and Provider Trusts to draw up plans 
to ensure sufficient capacity is in place to manage increased demand as a result of ‘missing’ patients 
presenting in the future and a subsequent peak in demand for cancer treatments, surgery and follow-up 
care.

In addition, GM Cancer Alliance is considering whether to develop active case finding to be more proactive 
in identifying ‘missing” referrals and encouraging patients to present.  

Cancer Diagnostics
Although diagnostic tests for suspected cancer patients have continued throughout the pandemic and are 
the highest priority, waiting times still remain longer than they were previously. Overall, GM diagnostic 
capacity is reduced by approximately 40% due to social distancing measures and zoning restrictions. 

Of particular concern, within GM and nationally, are the numbers waiting for an endoscopy procedure to 
diagnose or discount upper and lower gastrointestinal cancers. 

As at 15 September, a total of 826 GM cancer patients were reported as delayed awaiting diagnostic tests; 
793 of these were awaiting endoscopy. Waiting times are reducing week by week and it is anticipated that it 
will take between 6 and 9 months to clear the GM backlog. In comparison, Salford CCG has a relatively low 
number of patients delayed due to diagnostics, 21 are currently delayed awaiting diagnostics of which 18 
are waiting for an endoscopy procedure. 

GM are operating a collective approach to managing and clearing the endoscopy waiting list with the 
development of a single GM system management for these procedures, utilising capacity across all NHS 
and Independent Sector providers.

Page 27



8

Long waiting times for cancer treatment
Nationally GM has the highest number of patients waiting over 62 days and 104 days for treatment.  At 20th 
September, GM had 2,412 patients waiting over 62 days for treatment, of these 897 were waiting in excess 
of 104 days. SRFT had 143 patients waiting over 62 days, of which 42 patients were waiting over 104 days.

The majority of these long waiters are on either Lower Gastrointestinal (LGI) or Upper GI (UGI) cancer 
pathways, their waiting time lengthened by the delays in accessing endoscopy.

GM has developed a plan to comply with the national and regional mandate to reduce, by 30 November 
2020, the volumes of patients currently on active cancer pathways beyond 104 days. This plan is based on 
a number of assumptions, including that there is no significant second wave resulting in re-deployment of 
key workforce and resources.

SRFT manage all long waiters at weekly cancer patient tracking meetings. This, along with gradual 
improvements in access to diagnostic and treatment capacity, is reducing the number of 104+ day waiters 
at SRFT as shown in the table below.

6. Reducing Risk of Potential Harm

Pre-Covid, SRFT had agreed to complete a Root Cause Analysis (RCA) for every 62 day and 104 day 
cancer treatment waiting time breach. These were due to be shared at the Trust’s Quality and Patient 
Experience Committee (QPE), which is attended by the CCG’s Director of Quality and Innovation. Given 
the significant increase in numbers of these breaches, this is no longer a viable option. SRFT have looked 
at completing a reduced review for each of these patients but have estimated that the review process itself 
would remove too much consultant time and the focus has to be recovery. The QPE is exploring further 
options to assess potential harm.

However, a number of actions are being taken to reduce the risk of harm to cancer patients; 

 Prioritising assessment, diagnosis and treatment of suspected cancer and confirmed cancer 
patients

 Outpatient consultations and non-surgical treatments taking place virtually as appropriate 
 All cancer patients have regular contact with a specialist nurse, who provides support with 

maintenance of their condition, pain management etc. 

The Christies Hospital has published a comprehensive pack of information on their website for patients with 
cancer. They are providing; 

 Regular contact with clinicians for all patients 
 A 24 hour hotline for all patients 

7. Other Cancer Service Updates

A number of initiatives have been implemented in order to improve the patient outcomes for cancer 
services. Updates on these are below:

Page 28



9

Lung Health Check 

The Lung Health Check scheme began in September 19 and aims to identify cancers in the Salford 
population earlier than identification would otherwise take place. This allows treatment to commence early 
and patient outcomes to be improved in an area that currently has a lung cancer incidence rate 
considerably higher than the England average.

Since its inception it has so far identified 16 Lung Cancers and 5 Other Cancers at an earlier stage than 
would otherwise have been identified without the service. Several other non-malignant respiratory illnesses 
have also been identified and all smokers are offered support to stop smoking

Due to COVID-19 the provision of Lung Health Checks was temporarily suspended. The service 
recommenced on Monday 3rd August in the Ordsall and Claremont neighbourhood with 35 “virtual” 
assessment slots per week, supported by 16 CT slots. 

The CCG is currently looking to increase the number of assessment slots available per week nearer to the 
120 available prior to COVID. There is also the aim to increase the number of CT slots available (60 per 
week prior to COVID).

8. Areas of this report for future development 

The following areas are currently under development and will be included in future versions of this report 

Stop Cessation services 

Screening 

RDC (Rapid Diagnostic Centre)

9. Recommendation 

Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to:

 Note the contents of this report 
 Provide any feedback or comments on the content and format and anything additional you would 

like to be included. 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                          

Adult Commissioning Committee 
PART I 

AGENDA ITEM NO: 6

Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information (Please underline and bold)  

14 October 2020

Report of: Karen Proctor
Director of Commissioning, SCCG

Annette Donegani,
Senior Service Improvement Manager, 
SCCG

Date of Paper: 24 September 2020

Subject: Scheduled Care Update

In case of query 
Please contact:

Annette Donegani
annette.donegani@nhs.net

Strategic Priorities: Please tick which strategic priorities the paper relates to:

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research
 Integrated Community Care Services (Adult Services)

Children’s and Maternity Services
Primary Care

 Enabling Transformation
Purpose of Paper:                                   

The purpose of the paper is to update members of Adult Commissioning Committee on 
work programmes relating to Scheduled Care.  

Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note the content of this report and comment as 
appropriate. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 6

mailto:annette.donegani@nhs.net


 

                                                          

Further explanatory information required

HOW WILL THIS BENEFIT THE 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING OF 
SALFORD RESIDENTS OR THE 
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP?

Monitoring NHS provider’s performance against 
NHS constitutional standards ensures Salford 
GP registered residents receive a level of 
service they should expect to receive. 

WHAT RISKS MAY ARISE AS A 
RESULT OF THIS PAPER?  HOW 
CAN THEY BE MITIGATED?
 

N/A

WHAT EQUALITY-RELATED RISKS 
MAY ARISE AS A RESULT OF THIS 
PAPER?  HOW WILL THESE BE 
MITIGATED?

N/A

DOES THIS PAPER HELP ADDRESS 
ANY EXISTING HIGH RISKS FACING 
THE ORGANISATION?  IF SO WHAT 
ARE THEY AND HOW DOES THIS 
PAPER REDUCE THEM?

N/A

PLEASE DESCRIBE ANY POSSIBLE 
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PAPER.

N/A

PLEASE IDENTIFY ANY CURRENT 
SERVICES OR ROLES THAT MAY BE 
AFFECTED BY ISSUES WITHIN THIS 
PAPER:

N/A

Footnote:

Members of Adult Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly.  Once papers are distributed no 
amendments are possible.

Page 32



  

Document Development

Process Yes No Not
Applicable

Comments and Date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, actual report) Outcome

Public Engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation)



Clinical Engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation)



Has ‘due regard’ been given to Social Value and 
the impacts on the Salford socially, economically 
and environmentally?



Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality Analysis 
(EA) of any adverse impacts?
(Please detail outcomes, including risks and how 
these will be managed) 



Legal Advice Sought 

Presented to any informal groups or committees 
(including partnership groups) for engagement or 
other formal governance groups for comments / 
approval? 
(Please specify in comments)



CCG Scheduled Care Delivery Board
CCG Governing Body

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work and ensure there is clarity 
in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether amendments were requested about a particular part of the 
work.

P
age 33



Scheduled Care Update Report

1. Executive Summary

This paper provides an update on work programmes relating to Scheduled Care.  It outlines 
the following:

 current performance against relevant NHS Constitutional Standards
 the impact of COVID-19 
 actions to accelerate the return to near normal levels of non-urgent health services  

in line with NHS Phase 3 recovery requirements 

Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note the content of this report and comment 
as appropriate.

2. Introduction 

2.1 Scheduled Care refers to routine non-urgent care and includes the following 
standards and targets: 

 Waiting List for Incomplete Pathways 
Incomplete pathways represent those patients waiting for first treatment following 
referral to a consultant-led service. The target is to have less patients waiting in 
January 2021 than were in January 2020

 Diagnostics
This standard ensures that <1% of patients wait 6 weeks or more for one of the 15 
key diagnostic tests and procedures

 18 Week Referral to Treatment (RTT)
An RTT pathway is the length of time a patient waits from their referral to starting 
treatment.  This standard has a target of 92% of patients on incomplete pathways 
wait no more than 18 weeks from referral to starting treatment

 52 Week Referral to Treatment
This standard ensures no-one waits more than 52 weeks from referral for treatment 
to start

2.2 Non urgent care and diagnostic tests were paused during the immediate response to  
the pandemic and this report highlights the increased waiting lists, treatment waiting 
times and diagnostic backlogs that have arisen as a result.  

2.3 Whilst performance standards remain in place, nationally the way they are managed 
has changed for the duration of the COVID-19 response, for example financial 
sanctions for constitutional breaches have been suspended.  The CCG are not 
seeking detailed recovery action plans from providers given the huge impact of 
COVID-19.  However, the CCG will continue to track the level of performance and 
backlog as the system starts to step back up services in line with the NHS Phase 3 
recovery requirements.

Page 34



2.4    Recognising that we are still living with COVID-19, stepping back up planned and 
routine care in the NHS will need to be flexible, balancing the need to safely 
recommence more routine work with the need to respond to any future COVID-19 
patient demands.

3. Waiting Lists

3.1 The number of Salford CCG patients listed on an incomplete pathway in 
January 2020 was 24,742.

3.2 The waiting list reduced to 20,875 in May which was due to the significant 
reduction in referrals as a result of COVID-19, rather than an increase in the 
number of patients being treated. 

3.3 Waiting lists continue to increase month on month from 22,700 in June, to 
24,866 in July and 26,649 in August reflecting an increasing number of GP 
referrals over the past three months and reduced hospital capacity to treat 
patients.  

3.4 Pre-COVID Salford GP referrals were consistently around 4,100 per month, 
but reduced to 800 in April and 1,035 in May.  GP referrals increased in June 
and July to 2,242 and 2,098 respectively and 2,560 in August which is 38% 
below normal GP referral levels. 

3.5 The number of Salford CCG patients on a waiting list in August (26,649) is 
7.7% (1,907) above the January 2020 target of 24,742.

3.6 A return to near normal levels of GP referrals will further increase waiting lists 
as hospital capacity to see patients remains limited due to social distancing 
and hygiene measures and as urgent, emergency and cancer patients 
continue to be prioritised. 

4. Diagnostics

4.1 Salford CCGs current diagnostic waiting times are given in the table below, including 
comparisions back to January 2020 and August 2019 highlighting the impact of 
COVID-19.

Measure  Aug’19 Jan’20 Feb’20 Mar’20 Apr’20 May’20 Jun’20 Jul’20 Aug’20

Number waiting >6 weeks 380 330 87 196 1017 2169 2653 3175 3894

Total waits 5711 5530 5533 2407 2260 4078 5297 6932 7481

Target <1%
Patients waiting 6 
weeks or more for 
a diagnostic test Performance 6.65% 5.97% 1.57% 8.14% 45.00% 53.19% 50.08% 45.80% 52.05%

Number waiting >13 5 18 18 37 87 375 1471 1558 1760

Total waits 5711 5530 5533 2407 2260 4078 5298 6932 7481

Target <1%
Patients waiting 13 
weeks or more for 
a diagnostic test Performance 0.09% 0.33% 0.33% 1.54% 3.85% 9.20% 27.77% 22.48% 23.53%

Page 35



4.2 Referrals for a diagnostic test reduced from March onwards.  Referrals have started 
to increase but the volume of patients waiting longer than 6 weeks and 13 weeks has 
also increased. 

4.3 These breach volumes were expected as non-urgent diagnostic tests were cancelled, 
in line with national policy, due to the COVID pandemic.

4.4 Of those waiting over 6 weeks in August, the vast majority of patients (84%) were 
awaiting a test at SRFT and of these 81% were waiting for either an imaging scan 
(57%) or endoscopy procedure (24%).  Endoscopies and imaging are the most 
pressured diagnostic procedures.

4.5 During August a total of 13 Community Non-Obstetric Ultrasound (NOUS) providers 
recommenced routine NOUS scans and from July onwards the NHS, in line with 
national policy, began to restart non-urgent endoscopies that were cancelled or 
reduced due to the pandemic.  

4.6 These measures will start to tackle diagnostic backlogs but overall diagnostic 
capacity remains limited due to social distancing, zoning and hygiene requirements 
and the need to prioritise diagnostics for urgent, emergency and cancer patients, 
therefore diagnostic waiting times will remain much longer than they were previously 
for some time.

4.7 CCG diagnostic activity for the 5 month period April to August 2020/21 is 41% of last 
year’s volume of tests for the same time period.  The NHS is now in Phase 3 
recovery and requires Trusts to re-establish, and where necessary re-design, 
diagnostic services to deliver at least 90% of their last year’s volume of tests by 
September for MRI/CT and endoscopy procedures, with an ambition to reach 100% 
by October. 

4.8 Listed below are actions SRFT are taking to re-establish diagnostic capacity in line 
with Phase 3 requirements to reduce the number of patients waiting for a diagnostic 
test and the length of time they are waiting:

 Endoscopy activity is scaling back up after being reduced to just urgent in-
patients as per national guidance

 Endoscopy activity is currently approximately 50% of last year’s activity with plans 
to increase this on a week by week basis in line with Phase 3 recovery

 SRFT are currently using the independent sector at the Spire and Oaklands to 
deliver additional endoscopy sessions, and are looking to further increase activity 
on the Salford endoscopy site, in accordance with national Public Health England 
guidelines

 Currently, endoscopy for cancer and urgent cases are prioritised to address the 
backlog of activity that has accrued during the period of reduced activity; long 
waiters, non-cancer and non-urgent cases will be the next priority groups of 
patients to be seen

 Routine CT/MRI imaging is now being undertaken after a long period of reduced 
activity due to only urgent activity being delivered on site; there are substantial 
backlogs to clear as services get back up and running

Page 36



 This backlog is being addressed by scheduling additional waiting list initiative 
sessions to bring down waiting times and waiting lists

 One challenge is overnight sleep study tests which are yet to resume due to the 
difficulty in ring fencing bed capacity due to the zoning that is now required to 
segregate COVID and non-COVID patients on site.  Alternative locations are 
currently being discussed.

5. Incomplete Pathways - 18 and 52 Week Referral  to Treatment

5.1 Pausing non-urgent care, and the subsequent reduction in capacity, has increased 
the length of time patients are waiting for non-urgent treatment to start.

5.2 Incomplete pathways: 18 weeks RTT
In August 2020, there were almost 13,000 Salford patients waiting longer than 18 
weeks for treatment, which is around 52% of the total waiting list.  This compares with 
3,500 in August 2019 (12.5% of the waiting list).

5.3 Incomplete pathways: 52+ week RTT breaches
Of those currently on a waiting list in August, 712 were waiting more than 52 weeks, 
the majority of which were waiting for treatments at Salford Royal (373) or 
Manchester Foundation Trust (241). This compares to 26 breaches for the full 
financial year 2019/20. 

5.4 The level of both 18 week and 52 week breach volumes were expected as non-
urgent NHS services were cancelled, in line with national policy, due to COVID-19.

5.5 All hospitals stood down their elective planned care surgery in March 2020.  As 
services start back up SRFT is reviewing all patients waiting for surgery in line with 
Royal College of Surgeons guidance so that theatre capacity is utilised for the highest 
priority of patients.

5.6 NHS is Phase 3 recovery requires Trusts to accelerate the return to near normal 
levels of non-urgent health services as follows:

• At least 80% of last year’s activity for both overnight planned care hospital 
admissions and for outpatient/day case procedures, by September, rising to 90% 
in October (while aiming for 70% in August)

• 100% of last year’s activity for first outpatient attendances and follow-ups (face to 
face or virtually) from September (and aiming for 90% in August)

5.7 The proportion of Salford CCG activity for the above services in July 2020 compared 
to July 2019 is given in the table below and shows the gap that needs to be met in 
order to achieve September NHS phase 3 requirements: 

Non-urgent Care Service
July-20 activity as a 
proportion of July-
19 activity

September 
Phase 3 recovery 
requirement

Gap

Planned overnight inpatients 42% 80% 38%
Day Cases 44% 80% 36%
Out-Patients – first attendances 61% 100% 39%
Out-Patients – follow up attendances 73% 100% 27%

Page 37



5.8 Listed below are steps SRFT is taking to re-establish their in-patient, day case and 
out-patient capacity in line with these Phase 3 requirements:

Admitted Patients – Planned overnight In-Patients
• Continued to increase on-site theatre capacity in the short term by unblocking the 

barriers to re-opening all theatres on-site (staffing levels, anaesthetist cover, zoning / 
infection control requirements). A further 2 theatres are expected to be available by 
the end of September

• Continued use of off-site NHS and Independent Sector theatre capacity (Oaklands for 
Orthopaedics, Alexander for Neurosurgery, Spire for ENT and Spinal Surgery, 
Fairfield for Orthopaedics and Rochdale for General Surgery, Urology and 
Gynaecology)

• If all plans deliver, SRFT expect to achieve 79% of last year’s level of activity by end 
of September within NHS capacity across the Northern Care Alliance, with this 
increasing to 87% with Independent Sector capacity included. This is in line with the 
80% target by end of September included in the national Phase 3 recovery guidance

• Longer term planning is underway regarding how to further increase theatre capacity, 
including consideration of 7 day working

Non-admitted - Day Cases and Out-patients
• For non-theatre work, the main area of focus is expansion of day case 

infusion/procedure capacity. Day Case services have a reduced throughput due to 
increased spacing/social distancing requirements, so there is a need to increase 
capacity with 7 day working being considered to off-set this as well as making up for 
the reduced throughput in recent months

• Out-patient services have been scaling back up to see (either virtually or face to face) 
an increasing number of routine patients. This has involved a gradual increase in 
clinic appointments, made possible by creative approaches to spacing in waiting 
rooms and departments and having patients wait in their cars etc. until their 
appointment time. By the beginning of October, out-patient services expect to be 
running at 100% of pre-COVID-19 capacity, and are considering ways of clearing 
backlogs through ad-hoc weekend extra clinics

• Local service developments currently being implemented at pace for non-admitted 
patients at SRFT are Advice & Guidance (A&G) and Patient Initiated Follow-Up 
(PIFU)

• These service developments are in line with the national requirement to accelerate 
outpatient recovery and implement rapid out-patient transformation to urgently tackle 
the backlog of patients needing care

    
6. Recommendations
      
6.1       Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to:

 Note the Scheduled Care Update report 
 Note Salford CCGs performance against Scheduled Care national standards and 

COVID-19 recovery plans in line with NHS Phase 3 requirements
 Provide any feedback or comments on the content and format of the report and 

anything additional you would like to be included in future scheduled care updates 

Page 38



 
  
 

1 
 

Adult Commissioning Committee 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO 7 
 
Item for Decision/Assurance/Information (Please underline and bold)   
 
DATE OF MEETING 12 JUNE 2019 
 

Report of: 
 

Karen Proctor/Charlotte Ramsden 

Date of Paper: 
 

October 14th 2020 

Subject: 
 

Adult Commissioning Report 

In case of query  
Please contact: 
 

Judd Skelton 0161 212 5632 
Harry Golby 0161 212 6161 

Purpose of Paper: 
 
This paper provides an overview of a number of key or emerging areas of 
commissioning and provision relating to adult health and care to ensure Adult 
Commissioning Committee are kept abreast of developments and progress. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



 
  
 

2 
 

Further explanatory information required 
 

 
HOW WILL THIS BENEFIT THE 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING OF 
SALFORD RESIDENTS OR THE 
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP? 
 

This paper provides an overview of a 
number of key or emerging areas of 
commissioning and provision relating to 
adult health and care to ensure Adult 
Commissioning Committee are kept abreast 
of developments and progress. 

 
WHAT RISKS MAY ARISE AS A 
RESULT OF THIS PAPER?  HOW 
CAN THEY BE MITIGATED? 
  

N/A 

 
WHAT EQUALITY-RELATED 
RISKS MAY ARISE AS A RESULT 
OF THIS PAPER?  HOW WILL 
THESE BE MITIGATED? 
 

N/A 

 
DOES THIS PAPER HELP 
ADDRESS ANY EXISTING HIGH 
OR EXTREME RISKS FACING 
THE ORGANISATION?  IF SO 
WHAT ARE THEY AND HOW 
DOES THIS PAPER REDUCE 
THEM? 
 

N/A 

 
PLEASE DESCRIBE ANY 
POSSIBLE CONFLICTS OF 
INTEREST ASSOCIATED WITH 
THIS PAPER. 
 

N/A 

 
PLEASE IDENTIFY ANY 
CURRENT SERVICES OR ROLES 
THAT MAY BE AFFECTED BY 
ISSUES WITHIN THIS PAPER: 
 

N/A 

Footnote: 
 
Members of – Adults’ Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly.  Once 
papers are distributed no amendments are possible. 

Page 40



 
   

 
 

3 
 

Document Development 

 

Process Yes No 
Not 

Applicable 

Comments and Date 
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 

actual report) 
Outcome 

Public Engagement 

(Please detail the method  ie survey, 
event, consultation) 

  X   

Clinical Engagement 

(Please detail the method  ie survey, 
event, consultation) 

  X   

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 
Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts? 
(Please detail outcomes, including risks 
and how these will be managed)  

  X   

Legal Advice Sought   X   

Presented to any other groups or 
committees, including Partnership Groups 

(Please specify in comments) 

  X   

 
Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work 
and ensure there is clarity in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether 
amendments were requested about a particular part of the work.

P
age 41



 

4 
 

 
 

Adult Commissioning Report 

 

1.  Executive Summary 

   

 
This report provides an overview of a number of key or emerging areas of 
commissioning and provision relating to adult health and care to ensure Adult 
Commissioning Committee are kept abreast of developments. 
 
Items in this month’s report include: 
 

• Day Service Reopening 

• Mental Health VCSE Grants 

• Month of Hope 

• Carers Support Service  
 

 
2.1  Day Services Reopening  
 
Following the closure of Day Services at the start of Covid-19, in March 2020, 
services have been providing care and support to people in alternative ways.  As 
restrictions have lifted, we are supporting organisations to plan towards a phased 
return of day services.  Conversations have been taking place with providers, adult 
social care, public health and council regulators, to ensure that organisations are 
supported to do this in the safest possible way.  Providers have been putting 
together information such as risk assessments, policies, guidance for staff and 
people who use the services, and have been engaging with people and their families 
as part of this planning process.  Some providers have managed to reopen to a 
limited number, operating with small bubbles initially.  Others have not yet been able 
to open but are working towards this with our support.  This will be a phased return 
of the services, which will be reviewed at each stage before progressing and 
increasing numbers. 
 
Key headlines of the current status of services is outlined below: 
 

• Aspire Respite – 3 day stays for max 4 people, with a deep clean following 
this.  Everyone attending must have a test taken 3 days prior to accessing the 
service. 

 

• Aspire Day Services  - Services being offered to a limited number of people 
consisting of bubbles. These are at different stages across the different day 
centres, with some only just reopening and some that have been opened a 
little longer and are ready to increase by an additional small bubble.  

Page 42



 

5 
 

Community support continues to be provided to those not yet attending day 
services. 

 

• Age UK Salford  - Reopened mid September developing small bubbles of 4 
people  

 

• Chatsworth - Recommenced service early in September, and have 7 people 
attending, who form 1 bubble.  The service will continue to monitor and review 
every 2 weeks. 

 

• Garden Needs - Returned some outdoor activities/support by operating 
bubbles of 6, for 2 hour slots and 5 sessions in total per week (25 people).  
The service has also created “Woodland Wellbeing at Home” videos so that 
people can do their own mindful walk sessions when out with their household. 

 

• Headway - Currently unable to reopen as they use a community room at St 
Sabastian’s, which is not yet open.  All users of the service are currently 
receiving an alternative service offer via regular doorstop visits and weekly 
zoom meetings. 

 

• Home Focus  - Reopened to a maximum of 11 people, in 2 bubbles of a 
maximum of 5/6.   

 

• The Links Day Centre  - Service is open with small numbers of people.  The 
service has created a one-way system and separate, sectioned off areas for 
each individual, so that each person has their own area and equipment to 
take part in activities safely, with support. 

 

• Princes Park Garden Centre - Planning to reopen in early October.   Risk 
assessments have been submitted and liaison with adult social care has 
commenced.  

 

• START – Building not yet reopened, but planning underway to do so.  All 
classes and activity sessions are delivered online. Start are sending out packs 
to people to support them with activities so that they have the materials to 
work alongside the staff online. Where people can’t access online, they have 
been developing worksheets with materials and supporting via phone calls. 

  
Some people have chosen not to take up the offer of service offered to them from 
their usual provider.  Services have been asked to collate information on this, to 
explore possible solutions or alternatives.  
 
Providers are forwarding weekly updates to commissioners, and regular meetings 
will continue to take place to address issues as they arise to support providers with 
their service offer. 

Page 43



 

6 
 

2.2   Mental Health VCSE Grants  
  
Salford’s Transformation Funding from Greater Manchester was allocated to the 
VCSE sector to support a grants programme, administered by Salford CVS. In line 
with the ethnographic research and analysis of presentations into the Living Well 
pilot, the  priority areas for the grants this year are: 
  

• Loss (including bereavement, loss of role, identity, job etc) 
• Parents and Families (working with adults to prevent the cycle of poor mental 

health and trauma) 
• Substance /Alcohol misuse  

  
These are large grants, awarding £70k per topic area for delivery over an 18 month 
period. Initially, all referrals to these services will come via the Living Well Multi-
Disciplinary Team (MDT) (this will be reviewed in line with demand / capacity 
requirements). Awards have been made to a collaboration between Cruse and Six 
Degrees for the priority of Loss and to Society Inc for the priority around Substance / 
Alcohol misuse. Awards relating to parents / families are still pending.  
  
In addition, a small grants pot was established of awards up to £10k which focus on 
suicide prevention. In line with our key priority areas for this year, the funding 
opportunity focuses on suicide prevention programmes which support a reduction in 
isolation and particularly focus on suicide prevention and socioeconomic 
considerations. The inclusion of peer support in bids is particularly championed and 
this is viewed as a central approach to suicide prevention approaches. This 
opportunity is currently being promoted to the VCSE sector and closes 30th October.  
  
2.3   Month of Hope  
  
The Month of Hope takes place across Greater Manchester between the 10th 
September (World Suicide Prevention Awareness Day) and 10th October (World 
Mental Health Day). This year, a number of events have taken place, including:  
  

• Remembrance Vigil – Delivered by Start in Salford’s Reach Out programme, 
the vigil took place on the 10th September as a way of remembering loved 
ones who have died by suicide. Due to Covid restrictions, this event was 
managed in a socially distanced way with performers and speakers filming 
their segments and these being shown on an outdoor ‘drive in’ style screen.  

• Speak their Name Memorial Quilt– Working with over 80 people who are 
bereaved by suicide, a local GM artist has been supporting people to develop 
a square each for the quilt, remembering their loved one and creating a 
stunning piece of art work to raise awareness of suicide prevention. This was 
launched at Manchester Art Gallery and will look to tour localities across GM 
once restrictions permit.  

• Training to GM Barbers – The Lion’s Barber Collective have been 
commissioned to provide suicide prevention training to 40 barbers across GM 

Page 44



 

7 
 

(4 from Salford)  to assist them in acquiring the skills in identifying signs,  
responding to and supporting people who may be having suicidal thoughts.  

• Stories of Hope  - A live streamed poetry evening led by a local Salford poet J 
Ahmed.  This moving and powerful poetry event showcased the talents and 
experiences of people from GM who have personal experiences of suicide 
and who were wanting to share their words of hope.  

• Launch of Salford’s small grants for suicide prevention via Salford CVS. 
Funded by Salford’s GM transformation monies, a grants programme is open 
to community VCSE organisations in Salford looking to run suicide prevention 
projects across Salford in the next 18 months. The fund is for grants of up to 
£10k each and is open until the 30th October.  

• Suicide First Aid Lite training is being commissioned for those who are in roles 
with direct contact with those potentially at risk of suicide notably Citizens 
Advice, Food bank staff, Job Centre Plus, Housing etc.  This is particualry 
vital given the end of furloughing and as people start to feel the financial 
impact from the pandemic.   

 
2.4  Carers Support Service  

 
Following approval to procure, the Carers Service tender was advertised through the 
Chest; the North West online procurement portal to give maximum exposure.  There 
were 48 providers who expressed their interest in the opportunity with two providers 
subsequently submitting a bid.   
 
Bidding Providers were required to supply the following information in order for the 
evaluation panel to evaluate each bid. 
  

• Capability Questionnaire (Pass/Fail) – to test Providers had the required 
infrastructure and were financially sound to deliver the contract. Safeguarding 
was also included in this section. 

• Quality Questionnaire (70%) – to test the Providers understanding of the 
specification and proposals to deliver the service 

• Cost (20%) – a fixed price was submitted to deliver the service over the life 
contract. 

• Presentation (10%) – it was initially intended for Providers to be invited to 
deliver a presentation including the opportunity for the panel to ask questions 
to clarify specific issues with the bid. However, due to the response relating to 
COVID-19 it was decided by the panel that an alternative method would be 
utilised to obtain a response to the presentation question. In order to fulfil the 
requirements for stage three, a written response was requested for each 
provider with the opportunity to seek clarity via the Chest. 

 

The results of this tender exercise are: 

Page 45



 

8 
 

Name of 
Bidder 

% Price score 
(20%) 

% Quality 
score (80%) 

% Overall 
Score 
(100%) 

Cost (5 year 
contract) 

Provider 1 19.55% 64.00% 83.55% £2,331,951.00 

Provider 2 20.00% 58.60% 78.60% £2,280,000.00 

 
A request to award the contract to Provider 1 (Gaddum) was presented at SCC 
Procurement Board on 13th May and was approved. The final award of contract was 
issued on 8th June 2020 following the standstill periods.  
 
Commissioners have been working closely with Gaddum over the last 5 months to 
mobilise and implement the contract for service commencement on 1st October 2020. 
The contract will run for the next five years with the option to extend for a period of up 
to 12 months. Over this time, the contract will be regularly monitored on a quarterly 
basis with the appropriate commissioners in Children’s services. 
 
 
3. Recommendations 
 
Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note and discuss this overview of a 
number of key or emerging areas of commissioning and provision relating to adult 
health and care.  
 
 
 
Judd Skelton (Assistant Director Integrated Commissioning) & Harry Golby 
(Assistant Director of Commissioning)   
 

Page 46


	Agenda
	3 Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 9th September 2020
	4 Finance Report
	5 Cancer Update
	6 Scheduled Care Update
	7 Adult Commissioning Report

